EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee Date: 7 April 2021

West

Place: Virtual Meeting on Zoom Time: 7.00 - 8.04 pm

Members D Dorrell (Chairman), J Lea (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, R Bassett, S Heather,

Present: H Kane, S Kane, J Leppert, D Plummer, M Sartin and D Stocker

Other

Councillors:

Apologies: Y Knight and A Mitchell

Officers J Godden (Heritage, Enforcement & Landscaping Team Manager), A Prince Present: (Trainee Planning Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer),

V Messenger (Democratic Services Officer) and P Seager (Chairman's

Officer)

73. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council's Protocol for Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

74. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning permission.

75. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 10 March 2021 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

76. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest pursuant to the Council's Code of member Conduct.

77. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting.

78. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING POLICY BRIEFING NOTE

It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning Policy Briefing note was available at:

http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-Briefing-Note Mar-2018.pdf

79. SITE VISITS

The Sub-Committee Members noted that for the duration of the coronavirus pandemic, any planning applications deferred for a site visit at an Area Planning Sub-Committee would be automatically referred to the District Development Management Committee (or Council) for determination.

There were no formal site visits requested by the Sub-Committee.

80. PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2932/20 STONESHOT FARM, HOE LANE, NAZEING EN9 2RN

APPLICATION No:	EPF/2932/20
SITE ADDRESS:	Stoneshot Farm Hoe Lane Nazeing Waltham Abbey EN9 2RN
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
APPLICANT:	Mr Oliver Myrants-Wilson
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Application for Variation of Condition 2 `Plan numbers' of EPF/3500/17 allowed on appeal (Demolition of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling & 5 bedroom residential apartment and construction of x18 no. semi-detached family houses and x18 no. 'affordable houses' with associated off-street parking, private gardens & landscaping).
RECOMMENDED DECISION:	Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=645901

CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 15.03.2022.
- 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and retained strictly in accordance with the following approved plans: F126/20/S73/PL; 10.01, 10.02, 10.03, 10.04, 20.01, 20.02, 20.03, 30.01, 30.02, 30.03, 30.04, 30.05, 30.06, 1000, 1001, 2000, 2001
- No construction works above ground level shall take place until samples of the types and colours of the external facing materials have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.
- 4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.
- No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site
- Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 2015 as amended (or any other order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no extensions or outbuildings generally permitted by virtue of Classes A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the local planning authority.
- Prior to any lighting being installed along the road leading to the new development, a detailed lighting scheme following the Bat Conservation Trusts guidelines shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any lighting thereafter installed shall be in accordance with the approved details.
- Prior to any work being done to trees along the road leading to the new development, an updated bat survey of these trees shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any further surveys, licenses or mitigation recommended by this survey shall also be undertaken and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any works to the trees.
- 9 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been submitted to an approved in writing by the local planning authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications

and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the local planning authority gives its written consent to any variation.

- No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the local planning authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement unless the local planning authority gives its written consent to any variation.
- Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.
- A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run off and associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar practice tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the management and maintenance plan.
- No development shall take place until a scheme that includes the following components to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority:
 - a) A site investigation scheme based on the Phase 1 Desktop Study report (Herts and Essex Site Investigations September 2013) to provide information for a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off-site.
 - b) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to in (a) and based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures.
 - c) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (b) are complete and identifying any requirements for longer term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these components require the express written consent of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.
- No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place until a verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan (a long-term monitoring and maintenance plan) for longer term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan. The long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved.

- No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before commencement of the Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.
- 16 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out under condition 15 identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.
- Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under condition 16, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and any necessary long-term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

- Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. The approve monitoring and maintenance programme shall be implemented.
- In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the local planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with a methodology previously approved by the local planning authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority in accordance with the immediately above condition.
- All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 1830 hours Monday to Friday and 0800 to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time during Sundays or Public/bank holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
- An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided for each of the approved dwellings prior to first occupation.
- Prior to first occupation measures shall be incorporated within the development to ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.
- Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved a biodiversity enhancement plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. This should include the recommendations in the Ecology report dated December 2017 by Applied Ecology Ltd and include bird and bat boxes.

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs or works to or demolition of buildings or structures that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active bird nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared/demolition is started and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. As such written confirmation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

81. PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0161/21 CEDAR LODGE, MOTT STREET, WALTHAM ABBEY E4 7RW

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0161/21
SITE ADDRESS:	Cedar Lodge Mott Street Waltham Abbey E4 7RW
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey High Beach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of existing structures, alterations to existing vehicular access, retention of existing dwelling, Construction of one detached four bedroom house and provision of associated parking and landscaping.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=647273

CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and retained strictly in accordance with the following approved plans: TS19-157-1, 2833.2, 2833.3, 2833.4, 2833.5, 2833.9, 2833.10, 2833.12B, 2833.13A and 2833.16.
- Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of foul & surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, and shall be provided on site prior to the first occupation and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.

- 4 No preliminary ground works shall take place until a programme of archaeological trial trenching and excavation has been secured and undertaken in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved by the planning authority, in writing, and the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved scheme and programme.
- 5 No development shall commence until an assessment of the risks posed by any contamination, carried out in accordance with British Standard BS 10175: Investigation of potentially contaminated sites - Code of Practice and the Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR 11) (or equivalent British Standard and Model Procedures if replaced), shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. If any contamination is found, a report specifying the measures to be taken, including the timescale, to remediate the site to render it suitable for the approved development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved measures and timescale and a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has not been previously identified, work shall be suspended and additional measures for its remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures and a verification report for all the remediation works shall be submitted to the local planning authority within 21 days of the report being completed and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
- For the trees shown to be retained, no development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place until Tree Protection (in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction Recommendations) has been installed at the edge of the calculated rooting area as shown on The Tree Bureau 'Tree Constraints Plan' drawing number TCP7600 dated 21st December 2020. It shall be retained throughout development activities unless agreed otherwise with the Local Planning Authority.
- No ground works shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.
- No construction works above ground level shall take place until (documentary and photographic) details of the type and colours of the external finishes of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- Hard and soft landscaping shall be implemented as shown on The Tree Bureau 'structural landscape plan' drawing number LAND7600 dated 21st December 2020 and the accompanying planting schedule unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written approval to any alterations. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is

removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

- Following completion of the measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall be implemented.
- In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the Phase 2 report, work shall be suspended and additional measures for its remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures and a verification report for all the remediation works shall be submitted to the local planning authority within 21 days of the report being completed and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
- The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the window(s) in the flank elevation(s) at first floor level and above, have been fitted with obscure glass with a minimum privacy level 3 obscurity, and no part of that/those window[s] that is less than 1.7 metres above the internal floor level of the room in which it is installed shall be capable of being opened. Once installed the obscure glass shall be retained thereafter.
- Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, 1 Electric Vehicle Charging Point for each dwelling, shall be installed and retained thereafter for use by the occupants of the site.
- Prior to first occupation of the development, measures shall be incorporated within the development to ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.
- Prior to first occupation of the development, the recommendations as set out in the Ecological Survey by John Dobson Essex Mammal Surveys (dated April 2019) shall be implemented in full and retained as such.
- Prior to first occupation of the building hereby permitted, the buildings/extensions shown to be demolished on the approved plans, shall be removed from the site.
- Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.
- No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

- 19 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.
- Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during construction works shall be installed and utilised to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. Any mud or other material deposited on nearby roads as a result of the development shall be removed.
- No deliveries, external running of plant and equipment or demolition and construction works, other than internal works not audible outside the site boundary, shall take place on the site other than between the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturday and not at all on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority
- Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any other order revoking and re-enacting that order) no development permitted by virtue of Classes A & E of Part 1 to schedule 2 shall be undertaken.
- Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no fences, gates or walls shall be erected within the curtilage of any dwellinghouse forward of any wall of that dwellinghouse which fronts onto a road.
- All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

CHAIRMAN